East Montpelier Calais

Washington Central Supervisory Union

1130 Gallison Hill Road

Montpelier, VT 05602 U-32
Phone (802) 229-0553 William Kimball

Fax (802) 229-2761 Superintendent

Middlesex Worcester

WCSU exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to

their local and global communities.

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

Washington Central Unified Union School District Transition Board
Meeting Agenda
5.2.19
5:30 PM - 7:00 PM

Central Office, 1130 Gallison Hill Rd, Montpelier VT

Call to Order

1.1  Reception of Guests

1.2 Agenda Revisions & Board Comments
1.3 Public Comments & Correspondence

Consent Agenda
2.1  Approve Minutes of 4.25.19 - pg. 2

Discussion Agenda

3.1  Develop FY20 Budget to Recommend to New WCUUSD Board - pg. 5
3.2 Revenue Anticipation Notes - pg. 8

3.3  Articles of Agreement - pg. 11

3.4  Purchase Orders for WCUUSD

Action Agenda

Future Agenda Items

Board Communication

Adjournment



East Montpelicr
Berlin - T Calais

- ~ ~

Washington Central Supervisory Union A sl A
1130 Gallison Hill Road

Montpelier, VT 05602 U-32
Phone (802) 229-0553 William Kimball

Fax (802) 229-2761 Superintendent

Middlesex Worcester

WCSU exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to
their local and global communities.

Washington Central Unified Union School District Transition Board
Unapproved Minutes
4.25.19
4:30 PM - 6:00 PM

Calais Elementary School Library, 321 Lightening Ridge Road, Plainfield VT

unapproved
Board Members Present: Matthew DeGroot, Dorothy Naylor, Flor Diaz Smith, Chris
McVeigh, Scott Thompson, Vera Frazier, Will Baker

Administrators Present: Superintendent Bill Kimball, Business Administrator Lori
Bibeau

Others Present: Jody Emerson, David Delcore (Times Argus), ORCA videographer, Rick
Kehne, Helena Kehne

1.0  Call to Order: Matthew DeGroot called the meeting to order at 4:42 p.m.

1.1  Reception of Guests: Matthew DeGroot welcomed the guests and asked
whether there were any particular items on the agenda that they wished to address. There
were not.

1.2 Agenda Revisions & Board Comments: none

1.3 Public Comments & Correspondence: none

2.0  Consent Agenda

2.1  Approve Minutes of 4.8.19 and 4.12.19 - Chris McVeigh moved to approve the
minutes of April 8, 2019, and April 12,2019. Seconded by Dorothy Naylor. Discussion:
Matthew DeGroot noted that the April 12th meeting was held via teleconference; also that the
motion was voted by roll call, and he believes the names of the voters should be noted in the
minutes. Vera Frazier suggested an edit - that Matthew DeGroot was present at the April 8th
meeting. This motion carried, with noted edits.

3.0  Discussion Agenda
3.1 New WCUUSD Board Membership
3.1.1 Petitions Received: Matthew DeGroot shared that the following
petitions have been received: Jonas Eno-VanFleet, Jaiel Pulskamp. Board members shared
the names of board members from each of their local boards, that have been designated to
serve on the WCUUSD Board.



3.1.2 Public Forum to Meet Candidates: Scott Thompson stated that the
Vermont League of Women Voters had expressed an interest in helping to organize a forum
at U-32. Flor Diaz Smith noted that Rosie Laquerre (East Montpelier Town Clerk) had
suggested that the candidates share something in the local paper, The Sign Post.
Superintendent Kimball suggested that an opportunity to meet the candidates might be
coordinated with one of the next two planned meetings - May 9th or May 15th. Without
objection, the board agreed to set this date for May 9th at 7 p.m. Scott Thompson and
Dorothy Naylor offered to reach out to the interested parties - e.g. Vermont League of
Women Voters, and Susan Clark - to invite their participation as they had offered. Flor Diaz
Smith shared that town clerks have indicated that voters are asking for absentee ballots, and
would like to have information about opportunities to meet the candidates. Scott Thompson
and/or Dorothy Naylor will ask candidates to provide something in writing by a certain date,
to Krista Metivier, and she will post this on the WCSU website. Board members discussed
how it will be important to inform communities about the voting/ election procedures for
this occasion. Matthew DeGroot will draft something to share, supervisory-union-wide.

3.2 Articles of Agreement: Flor Diaz Smith shared that the committee has worked
out many of the articles (four), and has narrowed down some of the other more difficult
issues (school closure and debt), but is asking for input from the Transition Board. Matthew
DeGroot noted that the board that gets elected in May will be the board that warns the
budget. He suggests that it is more appropriate if that board also warns a vote on articles of
agreement. He noted that the Transition Board ceases to exist when the WCUUSD Board is
sworn in. Superintendent Kimball stated that this board has the authority to warn the
articles of agreement. Matthew DeGroot suggested, to make it less complicated and
confusing for voters, to have the one board (WCUUSD) warn these votes.

Will Baker asked what level of consensus does this group need in order to move the
articles of agreement forward. Answer: consensus of majority.

3.3  Transition Notifications: Lori Bibeau and Superintendent Kimball had
shared with the board a list of payroll/ benefit notifications that will be needed to make for
a smooth transition; some are needed by May first. Board members discussed the fact that
there is still much up in the air around merged districts. Scott Thompson asked, if the
board takes action to approve these transitions, and the ruling comes down that the forced
merge does not have to happen this year, have we boxed ourselves in, to go forward? Some
discussion followed around the existing accounts being in operation until June 30th and
these new accounts being operational on July 1st. Lori Bibeau stated that, with these
deadlines, we are no longer able to continue to operate on dual tracks, we have to go one
way or the other.

Rick Kehne asked whether the board taking this action is signalling that we are in fact
consolidating? Discussion followed. Lori Bibeau stated that she does not recommend
delaying a merge for a year; she is prepared to be operational on July 1st as a merged
board. Flor Diaz Smith expressed concern about protecting our employees - that moving
forward in a timely manner is needed. She wants our employees to know that “we have
their backs.” Rick Kehne stated that he also believes the boards should honor the will of
the communities as well; they should also know that “we have their backs.”

Dorothy Naylor asked for clarification - if the merging of these accounts were needed to
be “undone” in the future (if the legislation takes action to change the mandate of Act 46),
then it is possible? Lori Bibeau - yes, it is.

Scott Thompson reminded the board that at the meeting which this board was created, a
resolution was made and agreed upon that moving forward as mandated does not

3



constitute unanimous agreement. He believes that is part of the original charter of this
board and that it applies to any action taken at this meeting tonight.

Superintendent Kimball stated that we are now working on the existing legislation as it
stands. If there is a change in legislation in the future, then the board will have to make
decisions, and he reiterated what Lori Bibeau had indicated, that, while it would be
complicated and time consuming, and likely not recommended by central office staff, it
would be possible if it is the will of the board.

Superintendent Kimball also shared information about how to continue to operate
financially in anticipation of tax revenues, under the current unusual circumstances. He
and Lori Bibeau will provide more information to the board at the next meeting. Lori
Bibeau stated that much will come down to the voters approving a budget on June 25th.

3.4  Develop FY20 Budget to Recommend to New WCUUSD Board:
Superintendent Kimball shared that two formats of budget had been presented to the
board, to show: each school district as they currently stand, as well as the
one-board-one-budget scenario. The board will address this next week as well.

4.0  Action Agenda

4.1  Approve Transition Notifications: Flor Diaz Smith moved to approve the
transition notifications listed on page 5 of the agenda packet. Seconded by Will Baker.
Discussion: Scott Thompson stated that it's important that our schools can run, and it seems
necessary for this to happen. At the same time, he noted that agreeing to this action does not
indicate that he is agreeing to the forced merger in any way. He wants to be sure that is
understood. Vera Frazier stated, from a business standpoint, that she sees the need to take this
measure. Chris McVeigh indicated that, while he will vote in favor of this, he anticipates asking
to walk it back at a future date if the state legislature makes some change. Will Baker stated
that all we can do at this time is to take action based on the law as it stands today. Dorothy
Naylor stated that, while she supports taking this action to support the staff, she does so “with
a bad taste in her mouth,” and that she believes being forced to take this action two months in
advance is one of the downsides of being tied to technology. This motion carried
unanimously.

Will Baker moved to authorized the Superintendent to sign all documents and
contracts on behalf of the WCUUSD. Seconded by Chris McVeigh. Discussion: Lori

Bibeau explained this need. This motion carried unanimously.

5.0  Future Agenda Items: Matthew DeGroot invited board members to email suggested
future agenda items.

6.0 Board Communication: none

7.0  Adjournment: The meeting adjourned by consensus at 5:58 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, Lisa Stoudt, Board Recording Secretary



WASHINGTON CENTRAL UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT As of April 26, 2019
BUDGET 2019-2020 VS BUDGET 2018-2019

[ All Seven Budgets Combined ]

DESCRIPTION BUDGET 2019 BUDGET 2020 Increase{Decrease)
REVENUES

TUITION-SCHOOL DISTRICTS & INDIVIDUALS $914,900 $942,347 $27,447
INVESTMENT EARNINGS INTEREST $313,755 $323,755 $10,000
MISCELLANEQUS INCOME-OTHER $331,201 $344,445 $13,244
EDUC. SPENDING REVENUES $26,481,489]  $27,091,430 $600,942
MISC STATE REIMBURSEMENTS $599,073 $639,490 540,417
SPED EXPENDITURE REIMBURSEMENT 54,648,774 $4,500,582 -$148,192
SUBTOTAL REVENUES $33,289,191  $33,842,049 $552,858
FUND BALANCE | $16,720] $12,720] -$4,000]
TOTAL REVENUES $33,305911  $33,854,769 $548,858
EXPENSES

INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

SALARIES $7.910,867 $8,179,768 $268,902
MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS $2,222,131 $2,319,070 $96,939
TUITION REIMBURSEMENT $197,042 $197,042 50
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION SVC $75,263 $66,263 -$9,000
TUITION TO OTHER SCHOOL DISTRICTS $379,146 $480,831 $101,685
TRAVEL $15,100 $14,700 -$400
GENERAL SUPPLIES $256,452 $269,402 $12,950
BOOKS AND PERICDICALS $74,793 $80,793 $6,000
EQUIPMENT $39,000 $39,000 50
DUES AND FEES $700 $700 $0
TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES $11,170,493  $11,647,570 $477,076
PRESCHOOL PROGRAM

SALARIES $298,678 $362,438 $63,760
MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS $97,041 $89,755 -$7,286
TUITION REIMBURSEMENT $4,331 $4,331 $0
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION SVC $22,927 $32,927 $10,000
TUITION TO PRIVATE SCHOOLS $147,258 $148,325 $1,067
GENERAL SUPPLIES $6,715 $6,715 50
TOTAL PRESCHOOL PROGRAM $576,950 $644,491 $67,541
GUIDANCE SERVICES

SALARIES $722,179 $740,565 $18,386
MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS $218,374 $245,340 $26,966
TUITION REIMBURSEMENT $3.575 $3,575 $0
GENERAL SUPPLIES $32,876 $34,176 $1,300
BOOKS AND PERIODICALS $1,010 $2,260 $1,250
TOTAL GUIDANCE SERVICES $978,014 $1,025,916 $47,902
HEALTH SERVICES

SALARIES $337.816 $349,907 $12,091
MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS $75.195 $117.205 $42,010
TUITION REIMBURSEMENT $2,300 $2,300 $0
TECHNICAL SERVICES $550 $550 $0
GENERAL SUPPLIES $6,235 $6,235 30
BOOKS AND PERIODICALS $933 $933 $0
TOTAL HEALTH SERVICES $423,029 $477,130 $54,101
LIBRARY SERVICES

SALARIES $353,032 $346,731 -$6,301
MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS $84,266 $110,446 $26,180
TUITION REIMBURSEMENT $5,400 $5,400 $0
GENERAL SUPPLIES $19,401 $19,401 30
BOOKS AND PERIODICALS $50,258 $50,258 $0
TOTAL LIBRARY SERVICES $512,357 $532,236 $19,879
CURRICULUM SERVICES

[PROGRAM COSTS ] $218,924] $253,501] $34,577|
TOTAL CURRICULUM SERVICES $218,924 $253,501 $34,577



WASHINGTON CENTRAL UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT As of April 26, 2019
BUDGET 2019-2020 VS BUDGET 2018-2019

[ All Seven Budgets Combined 1

DESCRIPTION BUDGET 2019 BUDGET 2020 Increase{Decrease)
INSTRUCTIONAL -RELATED TECHNOLOGY SVCS

SALARIES $474,117 $486,125 $12,008
MISCELLANEQUS BENEFITS $124,547 $95.839 -$28,708
TUITION REIMBURSEMENT $8,600 $8.600 $0
TECHNOLOGY RELATED R&M $31,016 $32,516 $1,500
RENTALS AND LEASES-COPIER $53,200 $50,700 -$2,500
COMMUNICATIONS $113,400 $113.400 $0
SUPPLIES-TECHN RELATED $32,300 $32,300 $0
SUPPLIES-TECHN RELATED-SOFTWARE $209,324 $234,324 $25,000
EQUIPMENT $259,250 $259,250 $0
TOTAL INSTR REL-TECHNOLOGY SVCS $1,305,754 $1,313,054 $7,300

BOARD OF EDUCATION SVCS.

SALARIES $21,252 $21,890 $638
MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS $1,796 $1,758 -538
OFFICIAL SVC TAX COLLECT. $14,300 $14,300 30
LEGAL SERVICES $25,100 $25,100 $0
INSURANCE $99,832 $99,832 $0
ADVERTISING $12,700 $12,700 $0
GENERAL SUPPLIES $12,245 $12,330 $85
DUES AND FEES $23,765 $23,765 $0
TOTAL BOARD OF EDUCATION SVCS. $210,990 $211,675 $685
SUPERINTENDENT SERVICES

[FROGRAM COSTS | $518,078] $528,273| $10,195]
TOTAL SUPERINTENDENT SERVICES $518,078 $528,273 $10,195
QFFICE OF THE PRINCIPAL

SALARIES $1,350,478 $1,394,199 $43,721
MISCELLANEQUS BENEFITS $423 696 $432,560 $8,865
TUITION REIMBURSEMENT $19,200 $19,200 $0
PURCHASED PROF & TECHNICAL SERVICES $12,550 $12,550 $0
COMMUNICATIONS-POSTAGE $19,960 $19,960 $0
TRAVEL i $4,600 54,600 $0
GENERAL SUPPLIES $41,410 $41,410 $0
DUES AND FEES $7,386 $7,386 $0
TOTAL OFFICE OF THE PRINCIPAL $1,879,280 $1,931,865 $52,586
FISCAL SERVICES

INTEREST ON SHORT-TERM DEBT $302,925 $302,925 $0
PROGRAM COSTS $536,295 $541,583 $5,288
TOTAL FISCAL SERVICES $839,220 $844,508 $5,288
OPERATION AND MAINT.PLANT

SALARIES $1,152,635 $1,179,139 $26,504
MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS $353,750 $384,145 $30,395
UTILITY SERVICES $42,350 $42,350 $0
CLEANING SERVICES $89,355 $89,355 50
REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES &PROP $155,610 $162,610 $7.000
TRAVEL/GAS &BOTTLED GAS $9,200 $9,200 $0
PROGRAM COSTS $54,912 $23,573 -$31,339
GENERAL SUPPLIES $142,294 $140,294 -$2,000
ELECTRICITY $318,220 $311,220 -$7,000
QIL $116,440 $108,440 -$8,000
OTHER ENERGY-WQOD CHIPS / WOOD PELLETS $124,129 $124,129 $0
EQUIPMENT $20,600 $20,600 30
TCOTAL OPER., AND MAINT.PLANT $2,579,495 $2,595,055 $15,560
STUDENT TRANSPORTATION SV
(STUDENT TRANSPORTATION SV | $1,447,213] $1,451,183] $3,970|
TOTAL STUDENT TRANSPORTATION SV $1,447,213 $1,451,183 $3,970



WASHINGTON CENTRAL UNIFIED UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT As of April 26, 2019
BUDGET 2019-2020 VS BUDGET 2018-2019

| All Seven Budgets Combined |
DESCRIPTION BUDGET 2019 BUDGET 2020 Increase(Decrease)
STUDENT TRANS-OTHER
|STUDENT TRANS-FIELD TRIPS [ $37.805] $41,805| $4,000]
TOTAL STUDENT TRANS-OTHER $37,805 $41,805 $4,000
DEBT SERVICE
REDEMPTION OF PRINCIPAL $1,371,477 $1,369,466 -$2,011
INTEREST LONG TERM DEBT $373,371 $332,641 -$40,730
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE $1,744,848 $1,702,107 -$42,741
FUND TRANSFER OUT
FUND TRANSFER-CAPITAL $781,522 $636,522 -$145,000
FUND TRANSFER-FOOD SERVICE $100,403 $109,403 50
FUND TRANSFER-TECHNOLOGY & SOFTWARE $165,000 $165,000 $0
TOTAL TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS $1,055,925 $910,925 -$145,000
SUPPORT PROGRAMS-SP ED
SALARIES $1,028,659 $856,489 -$172,170
MISCELLANEOUS BENEFITS $489,831 $420,857 -$68,974
PROGRAM COSTS $5,506,626 $5,649,031 $142,405
TOTAL SUPPCRT PROGRAMS $7,025,116 $6,926,377 -$98,739
ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNER
[PROGRAM COSTS | $40,993] $51,121] $10,128]
TOTAL ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNER $40,993 $51,121 $10,128
CO-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES
[MISCELLANEQUS EXPENSES [ $741,428] $765,978] $24,550]
TOTAL COCURRICULAR ACTIVITIES $741,428 $765,978 $24,550
TOTAL EXPENSES $33,305,911 $33,854,769 $548,858
50 50 $0



Berlin East Montpelier Calais

Washington Central Supervisory Union

1130 Gallison Hill Road

Montpelier, VT 05602 U-32
Phone (802) 229-0553 William Kimball

Fax (802) 229-2761 Superintendent

Middlesex Worcester

WCSU exists to nurture and inspire in all students the passion, creativity and power to contribute to
their local and global communities.

TO:  WCUUSD Transition Board Members

FROM: Bill Kimball, WCSU Superintendent & Lori T. Bibeau, WCSU Business Administrator
DATE: April 26, 2019

RE: Revenue Anticipation Notes

Revenue Anticipation Note Formula:

This packet includes a sample cash flow statement that is prepared each year to borrow money
in anticipation of revenues. This sample uses the combined operating budget of $33,854,769
and historical spending information by month. Please note that this cash flow does not include
capital or other restricted funds.

Comparing Cash to Fund Balances:

Also included is a report using June 30, 2018 information for each entity. The information
shows the impact of accounts receivable and payables on the cash balances. For example,
WCSU has a fund balance of $304,489 yet the cash on hand was $56,703. This difference is
because of large accounts receivable balances for Special Education from the State of Vermont.
Please note: the information for FY 18-19 will not be finalized until June.

The Operating Fund Balances are projected to be lower when the books are closed this year
due to planned spending and transfers to capital funds. As of April, the projected fund balance
usage is approximately $750K compared to balances on June 30, 2018.

We will discuss this information in more detail at the meeting on May 2, 2019.



Fiscal Year 2019-2020
May , 2019 DRAFT #1 FOR ILLUSTRATION PURPOSES

WASHINGTON CENTRAL UNIFIED UNION SCHOQOL DISTRICT

Receipts Expenditures Surplus(Deficit) Cumulative Cash
Beginning Cash Balance $0
July $102,360 $2,800,771 -$2,698,411 -$2,698,411
August $757,386 $2,878,291 -$2,120,905 -$4,819,316
September $5,482,556 $3,192,603 $2,289,952 -$2,529,364
October $499,1569 $3,689,774 -$3,190,615 -$5,719,979
November $235,629 $3,361,531 -$3,125,903 -$8,845,881
December $11,367,210 $2,780,902 $8,586,308 -$259,573
January $487,798 $2,826,379 -$2,338,581 -$2,598,155
February $1,959,564 $2,471,526 -$511,962 -$3,110,117
March $2,069,991 $2,527,657 -$457,665 -$3,567,782
April $5,197,181 $2,609,963 $2,687,218 -$980,565
May $717,055 $2,380,705 -$1,663,651 -$2,644,215
June $4,978,882 $2,334,667 $2,644,215 $0
Totals $33,854,769 $33,854,769 $0 $0
Maximum Cumulative Cash Flow Deficit $8,845,881
Working Capital Reserve @ 5% of prior year budgeted expenditures $1,443,235
Total Maximum Anticipated Cum. Cash Deficit $10,289,116
Total Taxes Assessed-Prior Year $18,603,459 $16,743,113

Tax Collection Dates

Aug. 1, Aug. 15, Sept. 15, Nov.15, Nov. 17, Feb. 15,May 15




WCSUMWCUUSD Cash Accounts
Information as of April 25, 2019

Prior Year Information-June 30, 2018|

OPERATING FUNDS

OTHER RESTRICTED FUNDS

A B c D =A-B+C+D
Accounts Accounts Operaling Fund Combined Cash Capital Fund Student Activities &
Cash Receivable Payable Balance on Hand Balance Food Service  Restricted Funds

Bertin $400 $33,383 $13,218 $303,206 $283,441 $135,264 $50,526 $9.,823
Calais $620 $0 $18.809 $163,704 $183,133 $192,615 $10,068 $6,044
East Monipelier $250 $52,334 $18,495 $245,185 $211,596 $696,612 $36,473 $17.814
Middlesex $600 50 $64.429 $142,700 $207,729 $145,692 $23,912 §7,776
Worcester $250 50 $23,030 $189,797 $213,077 $76,007 $20,055 $11.788
U3z $1.800 $19,076 $216,414 $1,200,731 $1,399,869 $151,040 -$34.156 $132,224
wWCsu $400 $589,928 $341,742 $304.489 $56,703 $284,438 30 $789,528
Totals $4,320 $694,721 $606,137  $2,549,812]  $2,555,548) $1.681.758  $106,878 $975,007

10



Latest update on amends — January 8, 2019

Draft Amendments Recommendations by Articles of Agreement Committee to be discussed by Act 49
Articles Committee:

Changes to Article 10 - New Union District Board of School Directors

Immediately following the School District Annual Meeting of 2020, the Board of School Directors
shall be expanded to include five (5) additional members elected for a total of fifteen (15) members, with 3
members from each town. The additional members will be elected at the 2020 annual School District
Meeting. All members will be voted on by the entire electorate. Votes of the entire electorate shall be
counted together (comingled) without being first counted at the town level. (Approved as final 1.11.19)

New Article — Input on Policy and Budget Development

The-District Board shall provide timely and sufficient opportunity for local input on policy and
budget development; structures to support and encourage public participation within the District will be
established by the District Board of School Directors on or before June 30, 2020.

These structures may include but not be limited to local school councils that have an advisory
responsibility in key areas. (Approved as final 1.11.19)

Article Number

If a competent judicial authority concludes that any of these articles are illegal for any reason, then
that article or part thereof shall be nullified. The remaining articles or part thereof shall be deemed
severable from the nullified article or section of an article and shall remain in full force and effect.
(Approved as final 1.11.19)

Article Number

These articles are prepared due to the State Board's order forcing merger of the Washington
Central Supervisory Union member towns. By voting on these Articles, the voters in the member towns are
not waiving any rights to challenge the legality of the State Board’s forced merger order. All rights are
reserved. (Approved as final 1.11.19)

Recommendation to new board

The study committee recommends the school board considers the issue of a model of
representative town meeting for the adoption of the school district budget. With this model (pursuant 17

11



V.S.A. Section 2640a), representative members shall be elected in each of the member towns using a
proportion of one representative per 65 citizens in the participating towns. Representative members shall
be elected on Town Meeting Day. The elected representative members shall convene at a public place on
the first Saturday of April to deliberate on any warned items and vote on the budget for the unified school
district. The meeting for the vote shall be conducted in the manner of a Town Meeting Day school district
floor meeting. If a petition challenging the representative members’ vote is filed, then a special election
shall be held for all voters in the unified district to uphold or change the representative members’ vote.
(This will be discussed further as of 1.11.19)

12





